HOUSE FI NANCE COMM TTEE
April 6, 2006
1:46 P. M

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair Meyer called the House Finance Conmittee neeting to
order at 1:46:34 PM

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative M ke Chenault, Co-Chair
Representative Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Stoltze, Vice-Chair
Representati ve Ri chard Foster
Representati ve M ke Hawker
Representative Jim Hol m

Representati ve Reggi e Joul e
Representative Mke Kelly
Representative Beth Kerttul a
Representative Carl Moses

Representati ve Bruce Weyhrauch

MEMBERS ABSENT

None
ALSO PRESENT

Pete Ecklund, Staff, Representative Kevin Meyer; Suzanne
Cunni ngham  Staff, Representative Kevin Myer; M kayla
Saito, Staff, Representative Reggie Joule; Ben Milligan,
Staff, Representative Bill Stoltze; Eddy Jeans, Director,
Educati on Support Services, Departnent of Education and
Early Devel opnent; Janet Carke, Assistant Conm ssioner,
D vision of Finance and Managenent Services, Departnent of
Heal th and Soci al Services; Bill Hogan, Deputy Conm ssioner,
Departnment of Health and Soci al Services; Andy Pope, Juneau;
M ke Ford, Alaska Native Health Board, Juneau; Robert
Howar d, Pal mer

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Dick Mylius, Deputy Director, Division of Mning Land and
Water, Departnent of Natural Resources, Anchorage; Bob
Swenson, Director, D vision of Geophysical & GCeol ogical
Surveying, Departnent of Natural Resources, Anchorage; John
Kreil kanp, Vice President for Land Operations for Cruise
West, Anchorage; Dr. denn Juday, University of Al aska,
Fairbanks; Dr. Roland Maw, Upper Cook Inlet Driftnet
Associ ation; Dr. Kathinka White, Alaska Primary Care
Associ ation, Anchorage; Jeff Jesse, Executive Director,
Al aska Mental Health Trust Authority, Anchorage; Carla

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1 04/06/06 1:46 P.M



Shel ton, Parent Advocate; Emly Ennis, Fairbanks Resource
Agency, Fai r banks; Stacy Messerschm dt, Tok; Sydney
Stredi cket, Partners in Policy; Pat Lubby, Advocacy
Director, Al aska Association of Retired Persons (AARP),
Anchorage; Meg Mtchell, Homer; Stan Steadman, Executive
Director, Center Peninsula Health Center, Aspen Dental
Center; Jennifer MEl roy, Dental Hygienists, Soldotna; Dr.
Marguerite Mlntosh, Fam |y Doctor, Soldotna; Panela Hawk,
Anchor age Nei ghborhood Health Consortium Carrie Gey Wlf,
Knik R ver Wtershed Goup; Cecile Fritz, Knik R ver
Wat ershed G oup; Eric Unhde, Al aska Center for the
Envi ronnment, Anchorage; Todd C ark, Al aska Qutdoor Access
Al'liance, Anchorage; Patti Barber, Palner; Ken Barber,
Pal mer; Dick Coutts, Butte Community  Council Trail
Conmi ttee, Pal ner

SUMVARY

HCR 30 Creating an Alaska Cimte Inpact Assessnent
Comm ssi on.

CS HCR 30 (FIN) was reported out of Conmttee with
“indi vi dual ” recommendat i ons and with
i ndetermi nate note #1 by the Departnent of Natural
Resources and fiscal note #2 by the Legislative
Affairs Agency.

HB 105 An Act relating to coverage for adult dental
services under Medicaid; and providing for an
effective date.

CS HB 105 (FIN) was reported out of Conmttee with
a “do pass” recommendat i on, House Fi nance
Commttee Letter of Intent and with fiscal notes
#1 and #2 by the Departnent of Education & Early
Devel opnent and a new fiscal note by the
Department of Health and Social Services.

HB 307 An Act creating the Knik R ver Public Use Area.

CS HB 307 (FIN was reported out of Conmttee with
a “no” recommendation and with fiscal note #1 by
t he Departnent of Natural Resources.

HB 493 An Act relating to reinbursenent of municipal
bonds for school construction.

CS HB 493 (FIN was reported out of Conmttee with
“indi vi dual ” recommendat i ons and W th an
indeterm nate note by the Departnent of Education
& Early Devel opnent.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 04/06/06 1:46 P.M



1:47:56 PM

#HB307
HOUSE BI LL NO._ 307

An Act creating the Knik R ver Public Use Area.

ROBERT HOWARD, FRIENDS OF RESIDENCE, PALMER, testified
agai nst HB 307. He noted his last two decades seriously
advocating the commtting of |ocal resources to responsible
use. [ M. Howard distributed photographs to the Committee
of the area.]

He said he served with the Trails Commttee, the Mat-Su
Trails Council and a founding nenber of the Knik River
Watershed Group. M. Howard believes there are better ways
to address problens of that region. A State recreation
access area could provide a better solution. He thought
that an area accessible to nore than 300 thousand peopl e and
riddled with trail services will create undeni able inpacts.
M. Howard stressed the need for a managenent plan including
a Citizen s Advisory Board. He urged that HB 307 contain
stat ed deadl i nes.

1: 52: 12 PM

CARRI E GREY WOLF, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), W LDLIFE
Bl OLOd ST, PALMER, testified in opposition to the
| egi sl ation. She pointed out that birds and waterfow do
not have the option to leave; the Valley is part of a
critical magration route. Bird watching in Alaska is a
multi mllion-dollar business. If the bill passes, she
urged that the Conmm ssioner have the authority to restrict
the type of weapons used in the critical habitat area and

regulate the tine of discharge in the wetlands. She
advocated for sufficient funding for education, enforcenent,
habi t at protection, sanitary facilities and trail

mai nt enance.

1: 54: 57 PM

CECILY FRITZ, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), KN K RIVER
WATERSHED GROUP, PALMER, thanked Representative Stoltze for
initiating a plan that would help bring people together to
accommodate all users and the resources in the area. She
urged effective enforcenent, asking how the enforcenent wll
happen.

Ms. Fritz recommended the Conmittee anend Page 2, Section
41-23-190 - to include a Citizen' s Advisory Board. She
stated that Page 3, Lines 13-18, does not allow managenent
of the trails near residential areas, in the dunes, or
consideration of notorized use of the upland trails during
the wi nter season.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 04/06/06 1:46 P. M



Ms. Fritz pointed out that swans are present near that

trail. She urged that the bill be anended on Line 13,
inserting | anguage “as conpatible with the purposes of that
section and ending the sentence after the word “ariel”. She

noted that with good l|egislation, their group could work
effectively with the vari ous agenci es.

1: 58: 42 PM

ERI C UHDE, (TESTIFIED VI A TELECONFERENCE), ALASKA CENTER FOR
THE ENVI RONMVENT (ACE), ANCHORAGE, testified in opposition to
HB 307, noting that it does nothing to help nmanage
activities. ACE recommends a |ocal managenent style for the

area, nmanaged as a recreation area. The Knik River is
notorious for being a dangerous place and the |egislation
fails to tackle those problens. HB 307 Ilimts the

Comm ssioner of the Departnment of Natural Resources to
manage the resources and does not provide for any “on the
ground enforcenent”. HB 307 allows, “grand fathering” of
all existing trails; he recommended that section be del eted.
The planning process is the best place to address trail
issues for critical habitat areas.

M. Uhde recommended that a Citizen's Advisory Board be
established to conplinment the Departnment of Natural

Resour ces nmanagenent . In any event, proper funding is the
key. He pointed out that the fiscal note does not address
enforcenment and funding that is essential. I n concl usi on,

t he | ocal popul ation should be the ones to determ ne the use
of managenent areas.

2: 02: 05 PM

TODD CLARK, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), ALASKA OUTDOOR
ACCESS ALLI ANCE (AQAA), ANCHORAGE, discussed the goals of
AQAA to maximze the largest use of the public resources.
In South-central Alaska, there needs to be a place
designated for use by notorized vehicles. HB 307 provides
the opportunity for education, protection and nanagenent
enforcenment. He suggested that HB 307 could help solve the
probl ens, reiterating that enforcenent is the key issue.

2: 05:47 PM

PATTI BARBER, (TESTIFIED VI A TELECONFERENCE), PALMER, voiced
appreciation for HB 307, which protects notor hone users
She agreed there needs to be greater funding for the Al aska
State Troopers for proper enforcenent.

2: 06: 43 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 04/06/06 1:46 P.M



KEN BARBER, (TESTIFIED VI A TELECONFERENCE), PALMER, voiced
100% support for HB 307 and recommended no changes to the
bill. M. Barber agreed that enforcenent is essential.

2: 08: 05 PM

DI CK COUTTS, (TESTIFIED VI A TELECONFERENCE), BUTTE COVMUNI TY
COUNCI L TRAIL COW TTEE, PALMER, noted support for HB 307.
He explained the need for public use designation for the
Knik River valley. The traditions and rural |ifestyles nust
be protected - hunting, fishing, prospecting & trapping.
There are other parts of A aska that offer areas of no
notorized vehicles. Tourism is a choice of economc
viability in the Butt area. Ofering a public wuse
designation is an option for everyone. M. Coutts
acknow edged the need for nore | aw enforcenment but not a | ot
of new restrictions. There are approximately 72 public
agenci es that have regulations in place already for such an
infrastructure.

2:11: 09 PM

D CK  MYLIUS, (TESTIFIED VIA  TELECONFERENCE), DEPUTY
D RECTOR, DIVISION OF M N NG LAND AND WATER, DEPARTMENT OF
NATURAL RESOURCES, ANCHORAGE, comented that the Departnent
of Natural Resources has worked closely with Representative
Stoltze & Senator Huggins on the |egislation. He thought
t he changes nade have been good. The |egislation sets aside
264 thousand acres as a public use area; there is genera

support for addressing the concerns. The managenent plan
offers a good opportunity to address the issues. Anot her
key point of the bill is that it provides the Departnent of
Natural Resources enforcenment authority along wth the
Al aska State Troopers for citing violations. Current
enforcenment is not working on the ground.

2:13:12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BI LL STOLTZE, SPONSOR, thanked the Departnent
of Natural Resources for the proposed enforcenment |anguage.
He appreciated the direction the bill has noved; he pointed
out he is working on an anmendnent that would allow groups
out si de governnent, to provide resources for organizationa
costs. He highlighted | ong-termissues of the area.

2:15: 06 PM

Representative Kerttula voiced her appreciation with the
proposed cl eani ng up; she asked how the public process would
i nclude invol venment from the Departnent of Nat ur al
Resour ces. M. Mlius said they intend to follow the
standard public project process, which takes about two years
and involves public neetings to identify issues and
concerns. There were hearings held on the legislation |ast

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 04/06/06 1:46 P. M



summer to focus on the issues. The Departnent w Il gather
data to deal with issues such as a public survey regarding

area use. A draft plan would be witten, followng the
nmeetings on the plan and then a final plan would be witten.
He summarized the three rounds of public neetings. The

pl anning team would consist of the State agencies involved
in land and resource managenent and the borough.

2:17: 21 PM

Representative Kerttula understood the tinme and effort put
into planning, and asked if at sonme point a nore fornal
group could happen. M. Mlius responded that had occurred

fromtinme to tine in the planning efforts. Initially, there
was a formal advisory board - a group that was useful but
added time and expense to the process. It is known who the

prime usury groups will be.

2:18: 56 PM

Representative Kerttula pointed out that the enforcenent
section appears to be broader than normal and asked what it
enconpasses. M. M/lius replied at this tine, the only ones
aut horized to issue warrants are the Al aska State Troopers,
whi ch includes enployees from the Departnent of Fish and
Gane and State Rangers.

Representative Kerttula agreed there needs to be a “show of
enforcement and commtnent” to deal with the seriousness of
the legislation. M. Mlius pointed out that the fisca
note contains funding for a position that would be
responsible for patrolling the area and that the use is
somewhat seasonal

2:21: 32 PM

Representative Kerttula inquired how the public use area
could interact with the adjacent |and. M. Mlius replied
that nost of the Bureau of Land Managenent (BLM |ands do
not see much intensive public use. The BLM used to have a
few parcels closer to the road system but nost of those have
been transferred to the State.

2:22:20 PM

Representative Kerttula referenced the section of the bill
t hat addresses recognition of the existing off-road notor
vehicle trails and asked if that neant “consideration”. M.
Myl ius understood that it neant, “recognized”. Sone of
those trails mght need to be rerouted; the current |anguage
provides that flexibility.

Representative Kerttula asked if sonme of those trails were
creating nore debilitation, would the Departnent have the

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 04/06/06 1:46 P. M



authority to rehabilitate the area to bring them back. M.
Mylius replied they have that authority.

2:24: 28 PM

Representati ve Wyhrauch MOVED to ADOPT New Anmendnent #1,
#24-LS0737\S. 2, Bullock, 4/6/06. Co-Chair Meyer OBJECTED

Representati ve Weyhrauch explained the amendnent clarifies
that the Conmm ssioner cannot prohibit hunting within a
marine park-system He noted the |anguage canme from
Representative Kerttula s bill, which creates a marine park
i n Sout heast Al aska. He thought the provision fit well in HB
307.

2:25:37 PM

Representative Kelly pointed out it restates the existing
wor di ng. Representative Wyhrauch clarified that one
restricts while the other prohibits. Representative Kelly
asked i f it woul d af f ect fishing and trapping.
Representative Weyhrauch said it could not. Representative
Kelly <countered that it could reduce restrictions on
hunti ng. Di scussi on between Representative Wyhrauch and

Representative Kelly took place on the verbiage addressing
hunting restrictions.

2:27:53 PM

Representative Kerttula clarified that the reason for the
| anguage in her bill was to address concerns brought forward
by the territorial sportsnan. She did not believe there

were concerns regarding hunting but thought the issues
br ought forward by Representative Kelly were worth
consi derati on.

Representati ve Weyhrauch W THDREW the MOTI ON on Anendnent
#1. There being NO OBJECTION, it was w t hdrawn.

2:29:49 PM

Vice Chair Stoltze commented that the anendnment deals nostly
wi th Sout heast park issues and does not address |and and
managenent concerns that the Knik public use area has.

2: 30: 22 PM

M. Mlius pointed out the fiscal note addresses two
conponent s:

A two year planning process effort, and
* Along-termposition for a manager to that area

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 04/06/06 1:46 P. M



Co- Chair Meyer noted the two enpl oyees hired for FYO7 & FY08
and then one position in FY09. M. Mlius replied that was
correct, as the first two years require funding for the
pl anning effort. The long-term manager hired in the first

two years would be involved in the planning effort. The
pl anning position would exist only as long as the planning
efforts continue. M. Mlius said the planning position

woul d be placed in Anchorage; the Valley position funding
would be through the State Agriculture Ofice, the cost
covered in the fiscal note.

2:34: 11 PM

Co-Chair Chenault inquired if the position could help the
State Troopers. M. Mlius replied that it was the other
way around and that they would be assisting the Al aska State
Troopers. The area has becone a dunp ground for many stol en

vehi cl es and requires State Tr ooper i nvol venent .
Enforcenent wi Il have several purposes for patrolling those
gr ounds. Co-Chair Chenault appreciated that the hired

person would be working in the field, not in an office.
Representative Kelly enphasized the area clearly is not a
par k. M. Mlius understood that; there are a few public
use areas managed by the Division of Mning, Land & Water

2:37:44 PM

Representative Weyhrauch asked if it was a critical habitat
area. Vice Chair Stoltze said not as a whole but that part
of the process is to identify such areas. Creating a
mul tiple use area is the intent.

2: 38: 58 PM

Representati ve Foster MOVED to REPORT CS HB 307 (FIN) out of
Commttee wth individual recommendations and wth the
acconpanying fiscal note. There being NO OBJECTION, it was
so ordered.

CS HB 307 (FIN was reported out of Commttee with a “no”
reconmmendation and with fiscal note #1 by the Departnent of
Nat ural Resour ces.

#HB493
2:39: 30 PM

HOUSE BI LL NO._ 493

An Act relating to rei nmbursenent of municipal bonds for
school construction.

Co-Chair Meyer pointed out that Anmendnent #1 had been
adopted at the previous hearing.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 04/06/06 1:46 P. M



Representati ve Joul e W THDREW Anendnent #2.

Representative Joule MOWED to ADOPT Anendnent #3 for
di scussi on purposes. Co-Chair Meyer OBJECTED

Representative Joule explained that the amendnent would
provide a |imt of the total amount of the debt
rei nbursenent to $400 thousand dollars, to be allocated
between districts based on their size, as done in previous
years. Co-Chair Meyer noted his intent there be no 60% cap
as it would not be as attractive with the 70% anount.

PETE ECKLUND, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE KEVIN MEYER, expl ained
that from 2002 to 2004, there was an open-ended 70% approved

and 60% non-approved reinbursenment rate. Under that
program there was $699 nillion dollars authorized for
bonds. Last year, $177 million dollars for bonds was

aut horized with a cap structure.
Representati ve Joul e W THDREW Anendnent #3.

Representative Joule MOVED to ADCOPT conceptual Amendnent #4.
Co- Chair Meyer OBJECTED

Representative Joul e explained that conceptual Anmendnent #4
woul d provide an effective date. Representative Joule
observed that last tine bonds were issued, it included a
provision for rural devel opnment. Co-Chair Meyer agreed that
HB 202 added funding for rural schools; he observed the
i nportance of keeping the balance between rural and urban
school s. He pointed out that rural needs have been
addressed partly through the maj or mai ntenance |ists.

Representati ve Joul e W THDREW Anendnent #4.

Representative Joule MOVED to ADOPT Anendnent #5, a
conceptual anendnment which would add an effective date
cl ause. Co-Chair Meyer OBJECTED

2:45: 39 PM

Representative Joule explained that Anendnent #5 allows
rural school districts to participate in the debt
rei nbursenent program The anendnent s technical in
nature, addressing the North Slope Borough School District.

Co-Chair Meyer clarified that the anmendnent would allow the
North Sl ope Borough School District to participate in the
current 70/30 program in effect until OCctober 1%, 2006. He
asked if it was intended they be included in the 60/40
rei nbursenent after that date. Representative Joule did not
know about that eligibility.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 04/06/06 1:46 P. M



Co-Chair Meyer asked if it would be possible to provide for
Representative Joul e’ s request.

EDDY JEANS, DI RECTOR, EDUCATI ON SUPPORT SERVI CES, DEPARTMENT
OF EDUCATION AND EARLY DEVELOPMENT, explained that the
proposed legislation is open to all school districts & the
North Slope would qualify under the proposal. He stated
t hat Anmendnent #5 would reall ocate funds approved in SB 73,
by taking $2 million out of the allocation for the Anchorage
School District for the North Sl ope Borough School District.
M. Jeans noted that the Borough had passed the school bond
package, so they would fit within the tinmeline but they
would not be eligible for any reinbursenents in the FYO7
budget since they did not notify the Departnment of Education
of their intended debt.

Co- Chair Meyer naintained his opposition to Anmendnent #5.
2:50: 04 PM

Co- Chair Meyer pointed out that the Anchorage bonds fail ed,
but through the new el ection, they would qualify.

Co-Chair Meyer questioned if the North Sl ope Borough Schoo
District understood that they would be responsible for 100%

2:51: 00 PM

M. Ecklund explained that the list at the time crafted, did
not include projects for the North Sl ope Borough.

Representative Joul e WTHDREW Anendnent #5. Co-Chair Meyer
said he woul d support the amendnent if it did not take funds
away from other school districts. M. Jeans pointed out
that under the debt program districts have to submt their
proj ects separately.

2:52:41 PM

Co- Chair Meyer acknow edged disappointnment that Anchorage
voters did not approve the 70/30-school bond rei nmbursenent.
He hoped at the 60/40 | evel, the district would bond w t hout
a cap be in place.

2:54:54 PM

Representative Wyhrauch indicated his support for the
legislation & the proposed nechanism Co- Chair Meyer
pointed out that the legislation is a form of nunicipal
revenue sharing. Representative Hawker offered ful

endorsenment for financing in the proposed |egislation.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 04/06/06 1:46 P. M



Vi ce Chair Stoltze asked clarification regar di ng
rei mbur senent. Co-Chair Meyer stated that the current 70%
is in effective until Cctober 2006.

Representati ve Foster MOVED to REPORT CS HB 493 (FIN) out of
Commttee wth individual recomendations and wth the
acconpanying fiscal note. There being NO OBJECTION, it was
so order ed.

CS HB 493 (FIN) was reported out of Conmttee wth
“individual” recomrendati ons and with an indeterm nate note
by the Departnment of Education & Early Devel opnment.

#HCR30
2:57: 06 PM

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESCLUTI ON NO. 30

Creating an Al aska Cimte | npact Assessnent
Comm ssi on.

Co- Chair Meyer MOVED to ADOPT work draft #24-LS1605\L, Kane,
4/ 06/ 06, as the version of the bill before the Commttee
There being NO OBJECTIQON, it was so ordered.

REPRESENTATI VE REGA E JOULE, SPONSOR, spoke in support of
the legislation. He stated that the Resolution attenpts to
create an Alaska climte inpact assessnent conmm ssion to
identify and address issues relating to clinmte changes.
There are already economic inpacts to the infrastructure
The legislation places a group together to bring greater
understanding in planning for the anticipated changes. The
Comm ssion would consist of two nenbers from each body and
11 public participants.

JOHN  KREI LKAMP, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), VI CE
PRESI DENT FOR LAND OPERATI ONS FOR CRU SE WEST, ANCHORAGE
voi ced support for the legislation. Cruise West is a small
ship cruise line with 9 vessels in operation in Al aska that
travels to 23 statewide communities. The vessels have seen
damage from back-to-back storns in the None area. He
poi nted out that the ice gap has been shrinking, requiring
an additional day to be reached by ship. He suggested that
the Comm ssion look at the affects on docks, bridges and
roads. A changing climate affects travelers comng to
Al aska, and the future of tourismto Al aska.

3:07:25 PM

DR. GLENN JUDAY, (TESTIFIED VI A TELECONFERENCE), PROFESSOR
OF ECOLOGY, SCHOOL OF NATURAL RESOURCES, UNIVERSITY OF
ALASKA, FAI RBANKS, noted he has been involved in accessing
climate change for over a quarter century. He nentioned a
series of papers he published in 1982 providing inportant

House Fi nance Conmmittee 11 04/06/06 1:46 P. M



criteria regarding serious information on climte change
He was happy that considerations were being made and that
there is a process now happening. The real question is what
can be done now. There are many questions on the issues
comi ng

He said the fiscal note is nodest given the intention of the
legislation to assist in the process of transferring
information. He urged that the bill pass from Conmttee.

3:12:19 PM

DR. ROLAND MAW (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), EXECUTI VE
DI RECTOR, UNI TED COCK | NLET DRI FTNET ASSOCI ATION, testified
in support for HCR 30. He conplinmented the sponsor of the
| egi sl ation, noting that he fully supports previous
testinmony. The Cook Inlet area is currently struggling with

salmon returns into the upper Inlet. There is a lack of
rainfall fromthe 50-year norm and water tenperatures are up
to the limt for salnmon survival. Kenai supports the bill

havi ng great concerns regarding the issues. Dr. Mw | ooked
forward to serving on the Comm ssion.

3:14: 47 PM

BOB SWENSON, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), DI RECTOR
DI VISION OF GEOPHYSI CAL & GEOLOG CAL SURVEYI NG DEPARTMENT
OF NATURAL RESOURCES, ANCHORAGE, offered to answer questions
of the Commttee.

3:15:15 PM

Representati ve Wyhrauch questioned why retreating sea-ice
coul d affect polar navigation and raise security concerns.

M KAYLA SAI TO, STAFF, REPRESENTATI VE REGE E JOULE, responded
that the receding sea ice is opening up polar-regions and
that passage for the vessels is of concern. The security
revol ves around the many docks and ports for the foreign
entry.

Representative Joul e discussed the possibility of the North
West Passage opening up with increased traffic.

3:18:10 PM

Representative Kerttula MOVED to ADOPT to Anmendnent #1,
anmendi ng Page 2, Line 30, Subsection (d) to read:

(d) A nenber that is know edgeable in the area of and
managenent and restoration of wldlife and natural
resour ces.

Co- Chair Meyer OBJECTED

House Fi nance Conmmittee 12 04/06/06 1:46 P. M



Representative Kerttula pointed out a technical change,
deleting “that” and inserting “who”. The Departnent of Law
advised that the Legislative Branch couldn’t mandate the
participation of the Executive Branch. The Departnent of
Natural Resources is confortable with the amended | anguage.

Vice Chair Stoltze questioned the request. Representati ve
Kerttula stated it could be placed in the intent |anguage
that sonmeone from the Departnent of Natural Resources is
i nvol ved on the Conmi ssion. Vice Chair Stoltze indicated he
has served on various conm ssions and had not heard that
obj ecti on. Representative Kerttula pointed out that the
i ssue deals with the separation of powers.

3:21:12 PM

Representative Joule commented that in earlier testinony, it
was suggested sone departnments could serve in an ex officio
capacity and hoped the legislation would reach a broader
audi ence.

3:22:16 PM

Representative Kelly comented on the conposition of
menber shi p. Representative Joule clarified that the
| anguage of the bill addresses nmenbershi p changes.

3:26:11 PM

Co-Chair Meyer WTHDREW his OBJECTION to Anendnent #1.
There being NO further OBJECTION, it was adopted.

3:26:43 PM

Representative  Weyhrauch not ed hi s appreciation to
Representative Joule for introducing the |egislation.

Representative Kerttula MOVED to REPORT CS HCR 30 (FIN) out
of Conmmttee with individual recomendations and with the
acconpanyi ng fiscal notes. There being NO OBJECTION, it was
so ordered.

CS HCR 30 (FIN) was reported out of Conmttee wth
“individual” recomrendations and with indeterm nate note #1
by the Department of Natural Resources and fiscal note #2 by
the Legislative Affairs Agency.

#HB105
3:29:09 PM

HOUSE BILL NO. 105

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 04/06/06 1:46 P. M



An Act relating to coverage for adult dental services
under Medicaid; and providing for an effective date.

Representative Foster MOVED to ADOPT work draft #24- GH108\F,
M schel, 4/5/06, as the version of the bill before the
Comm ttee. There being NO OBJECTION, it was adopted.

3:30: 03 PM

Bl LL HOGAN, DEPUTY COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND
SOCI AL SERVI CES, explained that the Departnent is proposing
changes to the range of adult dental services allowed in the
Medi caid program The adult dental coverage currently
provi des only energency dental care. The |egislation would
enhance the existing energency dental program to include
preventive and restorative care. The expanded program woul d
benefit those nost in need as well as Al askan seniors. A
proposed cap of $1150 per year would allow for a full set of
dentures over a two-year period.

3:33:15 PM

M. Hogan continued, infections of the mouth can result in
all sorts of physical problens. Dental infections can be
passed to unborn infants and can keep a person unenpl oyed
given the decayed teeth. The Al aska Mental Health Trust
(AVHT) has a mni grant program annually dispersing over
$700 thousand dollars on dental care prograns for their
beneficiaries. If the bill passes, those Medicaid dollars
coul d be used.

The Division of Vocational Rehabilitation has noted they
spend annual ly about $100 thousand dollars to help people
with dental concerns, increasing the possibility they can
becone enpl oyed.

3:34:31 PM

JANET CLARKE, ASSI STANT COWM SSI ONER, DIVISION OF FI NANCE
AND MANAGEMENT SERVI CES, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SOCI AL
SERVI CES, pointed out that the revised fiscal note was based
on the conmttee substitute and was reduced from the
original note. FYO7 nunber reduction of $3.5 million
dollars estimate to $2.6 mllion dollars providing a
reduction to general funds. The fiscal note request for the
first year assunes coverage for 25%of a full year.

Ms. Cl arke explained how the fiscal note had been reduced

She nentioned the utilization assunptions. In |ooking back
at those assunptions, it was changed to a 15% utilization
the first year, 25% the second year and then up to 35% the
foll owi ng year, which reduces sonme costs.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 14 04/06/06 1:46 P. M



She indi cated how much the State spends on energency dental
coverage, factoring in the savings. Wen HB 105 was
introduced last year, it was based on a federal-Mdicaid
percentage of 50% our congressional delegation was able to
change that to 57.5% federal participation, saving in the
General Fund requirenent. The Al aska Mental Health Trust
Aut hority has agreed to maintain their funding level. AMIA

will be investing significant dollars during the next four
years.

Ms. Clarke pointed out that the commttee substitute sunsets
after FYO09. She offered to answer questions of the
Conmi ttee.

3:37:44 PM

Representative Kelly inquired about the reallocation of
funding within the Departnent. Ms. O arke advised that
making cuts to the Medicaid program is conplicated and
difficult. She stated that if the Departnent is not aligned
with the Legislature on what direction it is going into the

Medicaid program there will be many criticisns for making
such reductions. To find noney internally would be
difficult.
3:39:14 PM

Representative Kerttula inquired if nost simlar progranms
begin with a sunset. Ms. Clarke replied that there have
been prograns with a sunset such as Senior Care; sunsets are
becom ng a trend of this Legislature. Representative Kelly
was not conforted with the sunset concept, realizing the
enormty of the Departnent’s budget.

3:41: 24 PM

Representative Hawker disagreed. The point of establishing
a short w ndowed sunset, offers the Legislature the option

of making a policy call, rather than creating it into
perpetuity; the sunset offers a trial tine. He noted that
the bill has been restructured to avoid concerns of

conti nued grow h.

3:43: 22 PM

ANDY POPE, JUNEAU, spoke in support of the legislation. He
noted that he represented the seniors at Muntain View
Senior Center, many of whom are |owincone and have fallen
through the <cracks of dental care reinbursenent. He
comented that the $1100 dollar threshold would help
trenmendously for initial dental care expenses and then the
seniors could pay the rest wth their Permanent Fund
D vidend (PFD). He urged passage of HB 105.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 04/06/06 1:46 P. M



3:46:17 PM

M KE FORD, ALASKA NATIVE HEALTH BQOARD, JUNEAU, stated that
they conpletely support HB 105. The comm ttee substitute
provi des a cautious approach and allows taking a | ook at the
pr ogr am The proposed legislation is a prudent, practica
and critical for many residents of the State. He urged that
it pass quickly fromCommttee.

3:47:15 PM

DR. KATHI NKA  VWHI TE, (TESTIFIED VIA  TELECONFERENCE),
REPRESENTATI VE FOR THE ALASKA PRI MARY CARE ASSCOCI ATI ON,
ANCHORAGE, testified in strong support of the proposed
| egi sl ati on. Dental infections of the tooth, guns, tissue
and bone are infectious diseases. Dental problens, except
in early stages, are irreparable and cunul ative.

Dr. Wiite stated that oral disease is associated wth many

ot her probl ens. As many as 80% of the premature infants
born in the United States can be attributed to the
i nfectious oral diseases. Provi di ng energency dental care

may relieve acute synptons. She urged passage of the bill
stressing the need to address oral health and inproved
access to dental care.

3:51: 04 PM

JEFF JESSE, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), CEO  ALASKA
MENTAL HEALTH TRUST AUTHORI TY, ANCHORACGE, reiterated support
for HB 105. He nmentioned the seriousness of the sunset
provi sion and offered to answer questions of the Conmttee.

3:52: 09 PM

CARLA SHELTON, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), PARENT
ADVOCATE, enphasized the inportance of adult dental services
and urged passage of the bill.

3: 55: 05 PM

EM LY ENN S, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), EXECUTI VE
DI RECTOR, FAI RBANKS RESOURCE AGENCY, FAI RBANKS, testified in
support of dental care for adults & children wth
devel opnmental disabilities. Preventative dental care is a
necessary investnent that goes hand-in-hand with the other
disability services offered by the State. She urged the
Comm ttee’'s support in passage of the |egislation.

3:56: 23 PM

STACY MESSERSCHM DT, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), TCK,
spoke in support of HB 105.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 04/06/06 1:46 P. M



3:56: 50 PM

SYDNEY STREDI CKET, (TESTIFIED VI A TELECONFERENCE), PARTNERS
I N POLI CY, spoke in strong support of HB 105.

3:58: 00 PM

PAT LUBBY, (TESTIFIED VIA  TELECONFERENCE), ADVOCACY
Dl RECTOR, ALASKA ASSOCI ATION OF RETIRED PERSONS (AARP),
ANCHORAGE, noted that Medicaid has never provided any dental

care coverage and consequently, some ol der people stay away
from dentists because they cannot afford it. The result is
bad oral health, which adds to other physical health
concer ns. He stressed it is a real concern faced by rea

Al askans. He urged passage of HB 105, because it is good
public health |egislation.

MEG M TCHELL, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), HOMER, cited
her experience in wor ki ng with i ndi vi dual s with
disabilities, noting the need for adults on Mdicaid to
receive dental care. She expressed strong support of the
| egi slation, pointing out there are 40,000 adults in Al aska
that need the coverage but cannot afford it. She urged
passage of HB 105.

STAN STEADVAN, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), EXECUTI VE
D RECTOR, CENTER PEN NSULA HEALTH CENTER, ASPEN DENTAL
CENTER, KENAI, stated that his clinic has seen many patients
t hat desperately need such services. He urged passage of HB
105.

JENNI FER MCELROY, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), DENTAL
HYGENI ST, SOLDOTNA, noted the great need for adult Medicaid
recipients to receive dental benefits and echoed support for
passage of the |egislation.

DR. MARGUERI TE MCINTOSH, (TESTIFIED VI A TELECONFERENCE),
FAM LY DOCTOR, SOLDOTNA, testified in support of the

| egi sl ati on. As a famly practioner in private practice,
she noted costs for nedical concerns that begin with dental
I Ssues. She pointed out incidents of adults contracting

lung infections resulting from a |ack of dental care over
the years. She urged passage of HB 105.

PAMELA  HAWK, (TESTIFIED VIA  TELECONFERENCE), DENTAL
OPERATI ONS MANAGER FOR ANCHORAGE NEI GHBORHOOD HEALTH CENTER,
ANCHORAGE, noted that she had seen many patients suffering

from dental infections, and that those people can only
receive tooth extractions. She noted, many individuals
would like to receive preventative care prior to the

extraction. She addressed the high cost for root canals and
restorative treatnents; she stated that dental care is
conpletely prohibitive for anyone that does not have dental

House Fi nance Conmmittee 17 04/06/06 1:46 P. M



health benefits and insurance. Ms. Hawk thanked the
Comm ttee for consideration of the bill and urged passage.

PUBLI C TESTI MONY CLOSED

Co- Chair Meyer MOVED to ADOPT Anendnent #1. Vice Chair
Stol tze OBJECTED.

SUZANNE CUNNI NGHAM STAFF, REPRESENTATI VE KEVIN MEYER,
expl ained that the anendnent was brought forward at the
request of the Departnent of Health and Social Services,
because the wording in the draft commttee substitute was of
concern. The proposed change to Page 2, Line 6, clarifies
that the Departnment will pay for preventive and restorative
dental services as well as mninmumtreatnent.

The second change on Page 2, Lines 16-18, instead of only

palliative treatnment, the Departnment requests “imedi ate
relief of pain and/or the spreading of infection and
provided by a licensed dentist”. Janet C arke acknow edged

t hey had requested the change for clarity purposes.

Vice Chair Stoltze WTHDREW his OBJECTION. There being NO
further OBJECTION, it was adopted.

Representati ve Weyhrauch MOVED to ADOPT Anmendnent #2. Vice
Chair Stoltze OBJECTED

Representati ve Weyhrauch expl ai ned that amendnent woul d
renove the initial portion of the bill, mking it into
intent |anguage and putting it 1into a House Finance
Conmittee Letter of Intent.

Representative Hawker indicated his support of t he
anmendnent, pointing out the precedent to include intent in a
Letter of Intent rather than in the bill itself.

4.:12:57 PM

Vice Chair Stoltze REMOVED his OBJECTION to the anmendnent.
There being NO further OBJECTIONS, conceptual Amendment #2
was adopt ed.

In response to Co-Chair Meyer, Representative Hawker noted
that a great deal of tinme was spent on the revised fisca
note, which adequately reflects an excellent return on the
i nvest nment .

4:14: 32 PM

Representative Kelly asked clarification between energency
and continuing care.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 18 04/06/06 1:46 P. M



Ms. Carke responded that the statute clarifies energency
dental care very well as the “imediate relief of pain and
acute infection”. That definition is mintained in the
| egislation. She noted that other services were defined as
“preventative and restorative” and that restorative services
were being added in the legislation, while energency
services remain in tact. She reiterated that there is a cap
of $1,150 for total restorative services each year.

4.:17:18 PM
Represent ati ve Hawker addressed the criticismof the bill as
a “new prograni. He enphasized that dental services were

provi ded under the existing Medicaid program he explained
that the readjusted programtoward preventative maintenance,
in the hope that energency services would then be reduced in
t he new nodel . He stressed the cap as being unique to the
program which allows his strong support of the bill.

Representative Kelly noted he too supports the bill,
however, expressed concern regarding the sustainability of
the program within the Departnment’s budget. He noted the
escalation of that Departnent’s budget in addition to what
is going on with the public enpl oyee retirenment system

Representati ve Weyhrauch MOVED to REPORT CS HB 105 (FIN)
out of Conmttee with individual recomendations and wth
t he acconpanying fiscal notes. There being NO OBJECTIQN, it
was so ordered.

CS HB 105 (FIN) was reported out of Conmttee with a “do
pass” recommendati on, House Finance Comrittee Letter of
Intent and with fiscal notes #1 and #2 by the Departnent of
Education & Early Devel opnent and a new fiscal note by the
Department of Health and Social Services.

#

ADJ OURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 4:22 P.M

House Fi nance Conmmittee 19 04/06/06 1:46 P. M



